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CLARIFICATION NOTE NO. 1 

INTERNAL GSA REFERENCE: WF 242406 

RELATED TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI) IN PREPARATION FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF EGNOS 

GEOSTATIONARY NAVIGATION PAYLOAD SERVICES: “GEO-4” AND “GEO-5” 

 

Question no. 1: Orbit slot  

Section 6.2 of the RFI mentions :"The basic requirements of the GEO-4 and GEO-5 transponders to 

support EGNOS mission are:  

Orbital positions between 16° W and 32° E to cover the entire ECAC area with a minimum of 5 

degrees elevation avoiding orbital slots already hosting SBAS GEOs."  

Could you please confirm what is the minimum orbital separation between satellites?  

Answer:  

The minimum orbital separation between the EGNOS payloads will be defined in the tender 

specificatons at the time of the procurement. In any case, two EGNOS payloads cannot be in the 

same orbital position nor closer than 1 degree one to another. This constraint applies to GEO-1, 

GEO-2 and GEO-3 orbital positions. 

 

Question 2: Pseudo Ranging  

The purpose of EGNOS signals is to broadcast correction data and integrity information. In principle, 

the signals may be used for pseudo ranging in the same way as signals from a GNSS constellation.  

Will the signals from EGNOS GEO-4 and 5 be used for pseudo ranging?  

Answer:  

GEO ranging possibility will be decided at the time of issuing the detailed tender specification. 

 

Question 3: SARPS  

AD-4 of the RFI is "ICAO SARPS Annex 10, including up to Amendment 91 of 07/03/2018"  

This document does not seem to be available in the ICAO store.  

Could you please confirm where this document is available?  
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Answer:  

SARPS Amendment 91 of 07/03/2018 was adopted by ICAO council in April and it will become 

applicable on 8 November 2018. It is not yet available in ICAO store however it does not introduce 

any new requiremenet or modification impacting SBAS payloads. 

 

Question 4: Security requirements  

Section 6.4 of the RFI states "The sites, service and satellite operator will be subject to GNSS 

Programme security rules and constraints."  

Could you please confirm that the document to be considered is the attached one?  

Answer:  

European GNSS PSI will have to be respected . Also other requirements and constraints applicable 

to EGNOS V3 programme will be duly reflected in the tender documentation.  

 

Question 5: E5 channel  

Clause 6.2 of the RFI document contains a requirement on the L5 channel received power on 

ground.  

The same clause defines an option where the L5 channel is replaced by an E5 channel that carries 

two downlink carriers.  

What is the received power on ground requirement in case of this option?  Does the given L5 

requirement apply to each of the two carriers?  

Answer:  

The detailed specifications for each carrier will be published in the tender specifications when the 

procedure will be launched.  

 

 

End of Document 

 


